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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Good morning.

          3  Good morning and welcome.  Sorry for the delayed

          4  start of this Hearing.  I'm Councilman Jim Gennaro,

          5  Chair of the City Council's Committee on

          6  Environmental Protection.  Welcome to today's

          7  Hearing on one element of PlaNYC, the Bloomberg

          8  Administration's plan to create a sustainable New

          9  York City by the year 2030.  The goal, to provide

         10  cleaner, more reliable power for every New Yorker by

         11  upgrading our energy infrastructure, that's the

         12  goal, and how to best achieve this goal.

         13                 We'll also hear testimony this

         14  morning on Intro. 264, a Local Law to amend the

         15  Administrative Code of the City of New York in

         16  relation to the use of air conditioning systems.

         17  That's authored by Council Member Brewer.  We're

         18  happy to have her with us today.

         19                 Let's face it, energy reliability has

         20  become a major concern in New York City that has

         21  and, if unchecked, will continue to threaten our

         22  quality of life.  The blackout in Queens in last

         23  summer was largely attributable to outdated,

         24  overburdened infrastructure  --  pardon me  --  left

         25  100,000 New Yorkers in the dark without air
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          2  conditioning for up to nine days, as we all know.

          3                 Also, as we all know, this was only

          4  one of several such events in recent years.  Add to

          5  this, the age of our power plants, the fact that our

          6  grid is incompatible with clean distributed energy,

          7  the need for which we are, frankly, desperate, our

          8  lack of capacity to afford even our near term growth

          9  and other such concerns, and you begin to understand

         10  the importance of the goal we are discussing today,

         11  as well as just how daunting a task meeting that

         12  goal will be.

         13                 To complicate matters even more in a

         14  City of eight million plus people, all of whom are

         15  subject to the emissions from generation of our

         16  power, power reliability is not enough. We must also

         17  continue to clean up our air by cleaning up our

         18  energy production.  The combined threats of global

         19  warming and health impacts from particulate matter,

         20  ozone, mercury and other pollutants are too great to

         21  be ignored.  We need clean, more efficient power

         22  plants and clean distributed and renewable energy.

         23  In short, we need to lead the way to a clean and

         24  better future, which is what PlaNYC is all about.

         25                 So, we are here today to listen to
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          2  you, to experts, to the public and to hear how you

          3  think we can meet this challenge.

          4                 In addition, today, we'll also take

          5  testimony, as I said, on Intro. 264, a Local Law to

          6  amend the Administrative Code of the City of New

          7  York in relation to the use of air conditioning

          8  systems.  This bill would end the practice of

          9  commercial establishments opening their doors while

         10  operating their air conditioners.  We've all seen

         11  that phenomenon.  You walk down, you know, Fifth

         12  Avenue on a hot day and you get this blast of cold

         13  air, I guess to entice you to walk into the store

         14  and cool off and presumably to spend a lot of money.

         15                 We have no problem with people going

         16  to the store and spending a lot of money, but we do

         17  have a problem with on peak demand days, when, you

         18  know, Con Ed's grid is pressed to the maximum, that

         19  stores are cranking up their energy demands by

         20  trying to cool the planet.

         21                 At a time when we're focusing on

         22  providing cleaner, more reliable power for every New

         23  Yorker, and when we are crafting a plan that will

         24  address these issues and presumably will ask the

         25  participation of all New Yorkers, we should look

                                                            7

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  closely at a practice that is seemingly such an

          3  egregious and obvious waste of energy.

          4                 Before I conclude my opening

          5  statement and call the first panel, I'd like to call

          6  upon Gale Brewer, the author of Intro. 264, to give

          7  us some more perspective on this important bill.

          8  Also, before you start, Council Member Brewer, I

          9  just want to recognize the presence of Council

         10  Member Mark- Viverito from Manhattan, of course,

         11  Council Member Brewer, who will speak to us in a

         12  moment, and Council Member Liu from Queens.  Council

         13  Member Comrie, who is the Chair of the Committee on

         14  Consumer Affairs and this is a Joint Hearing with

         15  the Committee on Consumer Affairs, will be joining

         16  us shortly.  Council Member Brewer.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you

         18  very much Mr. Chairman on your leadership on all

         19  energy and environmental issues.  Regarding 264,

         20  this bill would, as the Chairman indicated, state

         21  that stores that have, in the summer months, I guess

         22  some of those, in the winter months, if they decide

         23  to do this with heat too, it's kind of a challenging

         24  situation to think that people would do this with

         25  the heat, in addition to the air conditioning.  But,
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          2  it is true, when you walk down the street, almost

          3  any street in the summer, it's hard to imagine

          4  today, it's rainy and kind of drizzly out, but in

          5  the summer and it's hot and the stores have their

          6  doors open, you do feel a blast of cold air.

          7                 Obviously, as you walk by, you might

          8  think, oh, this feels great.  But then, and the

          9  store understandably might say, we have to keep our

         10  door open in order to lure in customers. But, I

         11  believe very strongly that if we're really serious

         12  in our century, in our City, in our state, in our

         13  country, and the world about trying to conserve

         14  energy, that we absolutely have to stop such

         15  practices.

         16                 I say this very personally because we

         17  have a district office, a storefront, on an avenue,

         18  and we have an old air conditioner, it works, and we

         19  would love to be able to, in the summer, turn on the

         20  air conditioner and obviously have some air.  We

         21  don't need any more customers, we have enough

         22  constituents coming in.  But, the fact of the matter

         23  is it's wrong, it's almost criminal.  You feel like,

         24  if you're walking down the street and you feel this

         25  kind of energy, cold air coming onto the street, I

                                                            9

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  often feel, particularly if it happens over and over

          3  again on a particular avenue, I often feel that it

          4  is a, almost like a crime to the environment.  And,

          5  we're doing things not only to the electrical grid

          6  at peak times, but we're doing something to the

          7  layers of ozone that we're trying to preserve.

          8                 So, there's just many, many ways in

          9  which this unnecessary waste should be stopped and

         10  we should be encouraging responsible use of energy

         11  resources.  We never know if blackouts or brownouts

         12  that take place in our City would not have taken

         13  place if, in fact, 264 was in effect.

         14                 So, basically, what this, you know,

         15  particular law states is that if you have an open

         16  door in a commercial building it would be a $200.00

         17  fine per violation.  You know, it's a challenge, I

         18  know, to the small businesses and to businesses in

         19  general.  It's a City that does try to encourage

         20  commercial establishments and I'm the first to

         21  support so many small businesses in our

         22  neighborhoods.  But, we do have to focus on energy

         23  conservation.

         24                 So, I do think this is sort of a big

         25  stick against unnecessary waste that can negatively
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          2  impact our New Yorkers and the City as a whole.  So,

          3  even though it's cold and rainy today, I think we

          4  should be thinking long- term, into the future, just

          5  as the Mayor's sustainable development task force is

          6  doing and to say that even though it might be a

          7  sacrifice for those of us who are trying to lure in

          8  customers, it is absolutely wrong to be air

          9  conditioning the City of New York when it is a

         10  absolutely irresponsible use of energy resources and

         11  it is wasteful.  Thank you very much Mr. Chairman.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you

         13  Council Member Brewer.  So, without further adieu,

         14  we'll call our first witness, my good friend,

         15  Commissioner Rob Walsh, the Commissioner of the

         16  Department of Small Business Services.  Good to see

         17  you Rob. Pleasure to have you here today.  It's our

         18  practice in this Committee to swear the witnesses.

         19  So, Counsel to the Committee, Donna De Costanzo,

         20  will give the oath and then you can proceed with

         21  your good testimony.

         22                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Pleasure to

         24  have you here today.

         25                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Thanks for
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          2  having me, appreciate it.

          3                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Please raise

          4  your right hand.

          5                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Okay.

          6                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  In the

          7  testimony that you are about to give, do you swear

          8  or affirm to tell the truth, the whole truth and

          9  nothing but the truth?

         10                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  I do.

         11                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you Rob.

         13                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Thank you very

         14  much and good morning everybody.  Good morning

         15  Chairman Gennaro, it's also good to see you and

         16  Members of the Environmental Protection and Consumer

         17  Affairs Committee.  I'm Rob Walsh.  I'm the

         18  Commissioner of the Department of Small Business

         19  Services and I'm here to speak on Intro. 264.

         20                 The Bloomberg Administration strongly

         21  shares the goals of Intro. 264, that New Yorkers

         22  reduce energy consumption, especially on summer

         23  days.  Mr. Chairman, you spoke about the

         24  infrastructure being burdened on those summer days.

         25  I, like you, were out in Queens during that blackout
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          2  and, you know, saw some of the impacts.  It's

          3  important that all New Yorkers do their part in

          4  this, this effort.

          5                 However, we do, do not believe that

          6  Intro. 264 is the best initial approach to this

          7  problem.  When I think about the people who would be

          8  affected by this proposal, I think about the many

          9  small businesses.  I think about those local mom and

         10  pop shops that could be impacted.  It could be a

         11  local pizzeria, an ice cream shop or walk up, that

         12  has a walk up window or a restaurant with an outdoor

         13  cafe, where that door is swinging open all day long.

         14    I think of some of the other small businesses that

         15  make the City a special place through our 300

         16  neighborhoods across the five boroughs.

         17                 These businesses are what makes New

         18  York City great and my experience is, by and large,

         19  is our local businesses and our small businesses

         20  want to be good citizens.  They're committed to the

         21  City.

         22                 Here's what I propose and what the

         23  Bloomberg Administration proposes.  Before we pass a

         24  piece of legislation on this issue, that we spend

         25  time with a comprehensive educational campaign.
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          2  Over the years, growing up in New York, working in

          3  New York, I've seen where we have been very

          4  successful with educational campaigns.  I could

          5  think of times when we've had a drought on the save

          6  water campaigns that were so, so much of an impact

          7  and instilled a sense of commitment in New Yorkers.

          8  For our part, I think of what we could end up doing,

          9  just from, just from our small agency, the

         10  Department of Small Business Services, in our

         11  network.

         12                 There are now, in this City, over 50

         13  BIDs, Business Improvement Districts, that have

         14  outreach to tens of thousands of businesses,

         15  hundreds of local development corporations, chambers

         16  of commerces (sic), associations, you know,

         17  throughout the City.  I say we go to them.  I say we

         18  go to them with an educational campaign, talking

         19  about the issue of energy consumption and asking

         20  them to help correct this problem.

         21                 I'll tell you what I will do, you

         22  know, for those folks who have those, you know doors

         23  that are open, whether it's on Columbus Avenue,

         24  whether it's on Fifth Avenue, whether it's on

         25  Sutphin Boulevard, is to ask the Business
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          2  Improvement Districts to go in and target where we

          3  see problems, where you have businesses that have

          4  their doors open because they're luring businesses

          5  in.  I say we could end up doing that through an

          6  educational campaign.

          7                 So, my point today is, before moving

          8  forward on a piece of legislation, let's encourage

          9  voluntary action first. It's difficult enough to do

         10  business in New York.  It's costly. There's a lot of

         11  steps you have to take in terms of forming a

         12  business.  We certainly regulate businesses quite a

         13  bit.  It's an effort that we have been making in

         14  this Administration to streamline.  I say before we

         15  go ahead with another piece of legislation that

         16  could be interpreted many different ways, many

         17  different ways across the five boroughs, let's begin

         18  by leveraging our expertise and our relationships

         19  and have a comprehensive educational campaign.

         20                 Again, I want to thank you for this

         21  opportunity to testify and I'd be happy to take any

         22  questions that you have.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         24  Thank you Rob. Certainly, Small Business has no, I

         25  don't think I've ever had a better advocate than you
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          2    --

          3                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  --  And I

          5  certainly appreciate all the good work that you've

          6  done in my borough along Sutphin Boulevard.  I just

          7  want to mention that we're joined by Council Member

          8  Stewart.  It's a pleasure to have you here, Council

          9  Member Stewart.

         10                 So, it's been wonderful to hear from

         11  local businesses how they've received a lot of help

         12  from your agency and I  --

         13                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  --  Certainly

         15  appreciate all that you've done.  I just want to

         16  make a couple of points regarding your statement.  I

         17  know that Council Member Brewer is going to pose

         18  some questions as well.  I guess, your fundamental

         19  thrust of your statement would be, of course, to try

         20  with a campaign to educate folks about this

         21  phenomenon and the impacts of it.

         22                 But, it would seem to me that, I'm

         23  looking at what the possible effectiveness of an

         24  educational campaign would be, when they've already

         25  made a, you know, business decision to pay, what I'm
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          2  sure are starkly higher energy bills for this

          3  practice. So, they've made a business decision to do

          4  this.  They obviously have the money to do this.

          5  They're paying, you know, much more for energy than

          6  they otherwise would pay.  That's a big price to

          7  pay.

          8                 So, they've made that conscious

          9  choice, that conscious business decision and I'm

         10  wondering how you believe an educational campaign

         11  would be effective when they're, you know, when

         12  they're already paying a big price for this business

         13  decision.  I just don't see how that would be

         14  effective and I'll allow you to speak to that.

         15                 Item two of that question would be,

         16  for the little guys, for the mom and pop shops, the

         17  people that do business from like a walk up window

         18   --

         19                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  A window, yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  --  Or

         21  whatever, you know, certainly, there are reasonable

         22  accommodations that we can make in the bill to

         23  provide for any, you know, particular method of

         24  operating or a business that would be severely put

         25  upon by a bill like this.
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          2                 So, that's the two-part question:

          3  One, that people paying big money for this practice

          4  are not going to be swayed by an educational

          5  campaign and we'll figure out a way to protect the

          6  little guys by making it reasonable, the bill.

          7                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Well, I guess

          8  that's what I'm concerned with.  As someone who's

          9  been out in the City quite a bit, in this job over

         10  the last five year, and someone who ran a non-

         11  profit organization with a lot of small businesses,

         12  my concern on this is the translation and the

         13  interpretation when it gets down to the ground

         14  level, on the local level.

         15                 You know, it's certainly a challenge

         16  in terms of enforcement, what is a, you know, what

         17  is, what is a, you know, window that is open or a

         18  door open and how long and if someone did leave a

         19  door open, and having perhaps inspectors that, in

         20  some cases, many be too aggressive in enforcing the

         21  law.

         22                 I also think that there is something

         23  else here that we, you know, we haven't tried and

         24  that is, you know, and we, you know, I use the

         25  example of the drought.  I remember the campaigns
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          2  that took place on that, is instilling a sense of

          3  responsibility among the businesses and using that

          4  network, you know, our chambers, our BIDs, our, you

          5  know, other groups for those folks who are, you

          6  know, keeping that door open, as you said.

          7                 I think there's two different

          8  categories.  I think there's people who are making a

          9  business decision on this.  I'm going to keep that

         10  door open because I want people to walk in and I

         11  want them to buy a record or whatever, a piece of

         12  apparel. Then, there are others who are going to get

         13  cost, what I'm concerned is those businesses, those

         14  small businesses in particular, perhaps some of

         15  those businesses that have a language barrier, that

         16  are going to get caught in a cross fire of this

         17  piece of legislation.  I didn't know.  Oh, they

         18  meant windows too?  The doors too?  And that whole

         19  interpretation.  That's what I'm concerned about.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.  I

         21  could appreciate that perspective and I don't want

         22  to belabor it, but my belief is that, how should I

         23  say this, at a time when we're, you know, preaching

         24  a message of being energy smart, energy

         25  conservation, doing distributed energy, you know,
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          2  trying to take the pressure off the grid, doing the

          3  PlaNYC and figuring out how we can protect our

          4  energy future, cut down air pollution from these

          5  peaking power plants that come on line during the

          6  hottest days.

          7                 I guess it's a fundamental question

          8  of whether or not the City has the will to take a

          9  stand against this, what I think everyone would

         10  consider to be, an egregious practice of real big

         11  stores, you know, zillions of btu's just spilling

         12  out onto the street, on the hottest days.  So the

         13  question is, does the City, will the City make a

         14  stand against that practice and as part of the

         15  resolve of taking a stand against that practice, you

         16  know, figure out a way to accommodate, to reasonably

         17  accommodate businesses and not allow them to get

         18  caught in some sort of cross fire or get jammed up?

         19                 I mean, every time we do a piece of

         20  legislation, there's always intricacies to it,

         21  always trying to minimize the, I guess the so-

         22  called collateral damage of any kind of bill we

         23  could do.  I think we're smart enough to figure out

         24  how to do that, but for the City not to take a stand

         25  against this practice, it seems almost hypocritical
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          2  in the face of what we're trying to achieve with

          3  PlaNYC.

          4                 I think now's the time.  So, I guess

          5  the seminal question is, do you believe that this

          6  is, separate and apart from the little guys getting

          7  jammed up or whatever, but this practice of millions

          8  of btu's spilling out onto the street, you know,

          9  making those peaking plants run even more than they

         10  otherwise would, do you believe that it's something

         11  that we should take a legislative stand against,

         12  fundamentally?

         13                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  You know, again,

         14  I would say we don't  --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  The Chairman

         16  recommends a yes vote.  That's a phrase I use

         17  sometimes.  It doesn't always apply to witnesses,

         18  but I thought I'd try it.

         19                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  I think, I

         20  really think we would go a much further way, much

         21  longer way in terms of instilling a sense of

         22  responsibility through an educational campaign and

         23  zero in and target those.  Even through an

         24  educational campaign, those who continue to keep

         25  their doors open and are, are wasting energy during
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          2  some of the toughest times.  I really believe that.

          3  I believe that when you empower small businesses and

          4  you get businesses engaged in the practice of

          5  consuming energy, it goes a lot further than the

          6  gotcha.

          7                 I just think, I really feel, you

          8  know, I know who we're targeting here.  I, you know,

          9  you're going after some, you know, some of the

         10  bigger businesses.  But, as I look across the dais

         11  here and I think of districts up and down, it is

         12  tough enough.  It is tough enough on many of these

         13  merchants, many of the merchants who have just begun

         14  to go through a long laundry list of laws that we

         15  have put upon them.  One is, in terms of start- up

         16  and then two is in terms of operating day to day.

         17                 I say, let's give it a shot.  I, you

         18  know, I don't remember, I can't remember a campaign

         19  that took place like this and I think, quite

         20  frankly, we are better poised, as a Council, as an

         21  Administration, as a City, to go out there and say,

         22  hey, we're in tough times right now.  We've got to,

         23  you know, we have a hot streak going, you know, chip

         24  in as a New Yorker and save some energy.

         25                 I fear how it gets translated block
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          2  by block, you know, storefront by storefront,

          3  throughout the five boroughs, quite frankly.  We

          4  could target those, we could target some of those

          5  large businesses.  It was mentioned Fifth Avenue.

          6  We could go and talk to the businesses and the

          7  merchants associations and those organizations.  We

          8  could work with the utility companies, you know, in

          9  terms going, going after those that perhaps are on

         10  that top ten list of offenders, but let's do it

         11  through an educational marketing campaign first.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you Rob.

         13  I just, it's my distinct pleasure to recognize the

         14  presence of the Co-Chairman of today's Hearing,

         15  Council Member Leroy Comrie from Queens.  Of course,

         16  it's always a pleasure to be in Leroy's company.  I

         17  recognize Council Member Brewer for questions.

         18  Thank you Rob.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you

         20  very much.  I want to second Chairman Gennaro's

         21  positive statements about your agency and your  --

         22                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Thank you  --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  --

         24  Leadership.

         25                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  --  Thank you
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          2  very much  --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Absolutely.

          4                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  --  Council

          5  Member.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I guess my

          7  concern is similar to his.  The issue is, even

          8  though we know that it is tough on small businesses

          9  and as I indicated, we have a storefront on a strip

         10  of small businesses.  I know absolutely how

         11  difficult it is.  I think education before any kind

         12  of bill like this is put on the books would be

         13  incredibly helpful.  I don't think people know that

         14  it is so important to close the doors and save

         15  energy.

         16                 You know, in this City, thanks to the

         17  leadership of your Administration and this Committee

         18  and others and the world that we live in, I think

         19  energy resources and obviously I give Al Gore credit

         20  too, there is a real understanding beginning to seep

         21  in about this issue.  But, it is slow in coming.

         22  You're not the Sanitation Commissioner.  I don't

         23  know why, but it is very difficult to increase the

         24  percentage of recycling in this City.  It is a

         25  challenge that is, we haven't met and we're trying.
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          2                 So, I think this is part of it.  We

          3  have to send a, we can send an education message,

          4  but I think we also have to send a carrot and stick

          5  message that the energy is finite and you may make a

          6  business decision that is okay as a large store to

          7  spend more in order to lure in customers, but,

          8  that's not good for our City and our energy and our

          9  grid.  So, your business decision is just not going

         10  work.

         11                 You know, you could have the BIDs and

         12  the chambers and they're all wonderful, but not

         13  every single strip and store comes under those kinds

         14  of chambers and BIDs.  So, I do think education

         15  accompanied by some kind of bill would be helpful.

         16  The problem is that you can do the education

         17  campaign for a certain period of time and then we

         18  move on and nobody's doing the education and the

         19  energy is still finite.

         20                 So, I think it needs some discussion

         21  and I, too, feel very strongly about how hard it is

         22  as a small business, but so is the energy and the

         23  grid also a challenge to meet in terms of they're

         24  not going to be there forever for us unless we

         25  conserve them.
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          2                 I do think that as New Yorkers and

          3  leaders, we don't send a strong enough message,

          4  perhaps now we are with the different aspects of

          5  today's Hearings and the focus on the need for our

          6  environment to be saved.  It's hard, you're walking

          7  down the street, you're trying to go about your

          8  business.  I don't think people realize that

          9  everything that we do can contribute to the planet

         10  and its energy and environment.

         11                 So, this would be sort of one way of

         12  saying it. You know, you could pick different

         13  stores.  You could have some kind of compromise,

         14  but, unfortunately, without a stick, I don't think

         15  that people are going to follow it.  You can do the

         16  18 inch law, which I know you're familiar with.

         17  It's a pain in the neck when the person next door

         18  drops the wrapper and it's not your fault.  There

         19  are so many ways I know that the small business has

         20  to succumb.  I'm always out there sweeping the

         21  storefront.  It's like the snow, the litter.  But,

         22  you've got to do it.  That's what you have to do as

         23  part of your business.

         24                 I think, again, with the kind of

         25  enforcement that is appropriate as opposed to two
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          2  heavy handed, we could all, it's a win- win

          3  situation for the environment, for New Yorkers and

          4  for store keepers who could, perhaps, be said, you

          5  know, you're green, you're environment, you're

          6  great.  There could be some kind of positive aspect

          7  to a campaign also.  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Rob, did you

          9  have a comment? Okay.  Thank you Council Member

         10  Brewer.  I recognize Chairman Comrie for an opening

         11  remark.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Well, good

         13  morning. Comptroller Bill Thompson was in my

         14  district this morning at a breakfast at York College

         15  and when the Comptroller's in your district  --

         16                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Right.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  --  You need to

         18  be there  --

         19                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Understood.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  --  And traffic

         21  was horrible this morning getting here, so, I

         22  apologize.  I just want to thank Council Member

         23  Gennaro.  He's, you know, the Chair of the

         24  Environmental Protection Committee  --  he's also on

         25  my Consumer Affairs Committee, just for scheduling
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          2  this meeting today, and thank his staff for

          3  everything that they've done to put these issues

          4  together.

          5                 I'm not going to speak on Intro. 264.

          6    I'm looking forward more to the sustainability

          7  discussion and I'll move forward from there.  But,

          8  Commissioner Walsh, it's always good to see you this

          9  morning  --

         10                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Nice to see you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  --  And I just

         12  want to, since I came late and I'm just listening to

         13  the end of the testimony, I don't want to get in the

         14  middle of it.  I'll sit and absorb it and get back

         15  to you later if  --

         16                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  --  Well, thank

         19  you.

         20                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Appreciate it,

         21  thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you

         23  Chairman Comrie. Yes, I guess I'll just kind of wrap

         24  up here.  I guess to observations, I guess, when we,

         25  as we're going through sustainability and as we roll
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          2  out the package of legislative initiatives and other

          3  things that will part of that effort, there will

          4  certainly be requirements.  There will be, you know,

          5  teeth to that.  It won't all be voluntary.

          6                 As much as people want to be good

          7  citizens, you know, just like we see in

          8  sustainability, there are going to be things that

          9  have teeth and I think this is something that sort

         10  of cries out for that.  It's somewhat ironic that as

         11  we talk about a sustainable City and getting our

         12  energy house in order, I think there's a touch of

         13  irony in the, I guess like the level of reluctance

         14  on the part of the Administration to even consider

         15  some kind of legislative remedy to this symbol of

         16  energy wasting. Just to finish off with a question

         17  to get you on the record, is there any legislative

         18  remedy for the issue that we've outlined today that

         19  you can conceive of that you would be willing to

         20  consider?

         21                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  I would say the

         22  best initial approach on this would be an education

         23  marketing campaign first before we introduce any

         24  piece of legislation  --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yeah, but  --
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          2                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  --  In this

          3  area.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  --  And you

          5  said that and I can appreciate that.  But, I guess,

          6  the question that I'd ask you to speak is, is there

          7  any legislative initiative that, of course, you

          8  know, had some enforcement mechanism in it that you

          9  believe you could ultimately be receptive to?

         10                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Not at this

         11  point.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  No, okay.

         13  Well, you made it clear.  So, I just wanted to  --

         14                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  --  Get that

         16  point crystal. What I'll do is I'll finish where I

         17  began, which is the Sutphin Boulevard BID and, you

         18  know, many of the local businesses in Queens have

         19  very good things to say about all of the efforts

         20  that you've done over there  --

         21                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  --  On their

         24  behalf and I'm happy to go into my district and take

         25  credit for some of the good things you do.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Well, good,

          3  thank you and others on this Committee for all your

          4  support for those organizations.  They do make a

          5  difference and we appreciate the support and

          6  relationship.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.  I

          8  am going to, it just popped into my head, it's off

          9  topic.  I'm going to afford myself a little bit of

         10  latitude, as Chairman.  I won't spend a lot of time

         11  on it, but Sutphin Boulevard, yours and my favorite

         12  Boulevard, there is a  --  yes --  let's not  --

         13                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  He has a part of

         14  it.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes, yes, he's

         16  got the air train and everything.  The Supreme Court

         17  with the fence  --

         18                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  The fence on the

         19    --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  --  The fence

         21  around the Supreme Court and so, you know, we're

         22  going to be coming to you on that.

         23                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Good.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  We've tried a

         25  couple of different ways to kind of, you know,
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          2  navigate on this thing.

          3                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  I'd be happy to

          4  sit down and talk to you  --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes, it's a

          6  wonderful open space, you know, we've got to make

          7  that open space more inviting. We've got that iron

          8  fence that has, you know, go away written all over

          9  it.  So, I'd like to talk to you about that.

         10                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Let's do that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, sure

         12  thing.

         13                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  All right, thank

         14  you, thank you very much Mr. Chairman.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  A real pleasure

         16  to see you.

         17                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Good seeing you

         18  as always.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Take care, you

         20  bet.

         21                 COMMISSIONER WALSH:  Thank you

         22  everybody, thanks.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, we're

         24  going to focus to the, we're going to switch over to

         25  the oversight topic on sustainability.  So, we'll
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          2  call Gil Quiniones and Rohit Aggarwala.  Just

          3  because we're going to the oversight topic now, for

          4  the purposes of this panel, you know, subsequent

          5  witnesses can speak on Intro. 264 or the oversight,

          6  of course.

          7                 A real pleasure to have both of you

          8  with us here today.  It's always great to see you

          9  guys and to get an opportunity to thank you for all

         10  the good work you do for the people of the City of

         11  New York day in and day out.  So, we really, really

         12  do appreciate that and we value your dedicated

         13  service and notwithstanding those accolades, we're

         14  still going to swear you in anyway.  So, if Donna

         15  could give the oath.

         16                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Please raise

         17  your right hand.  In the testimony that you're about

         18  to give, do you swear or affirm to tell the truth,

         19  the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         20                 MR. QUINIONES:  I do.

         21                 MR. AGGARWALA:  Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Pleasure to

         23  have you both here.  As you testify, just state your

         24  name for the record when you begin your statement

         25  and please proceed.
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          2                 MR. AGGARWALA:  Thank you Chairman

          3  Gennaro, Chairman Comrie and Members of the

          4  Committees.  My name is Rohit T. Aggarwala and I am

          5  the Director of Long- term Planning and

          6  Sustainability in the Mayor's Office of Operations.

          7  Thank you for the opportunity to testify today on

          8  the Mayor's goal for 2030 of achieving a clean and

          9  reliability power supply for all New Yorkers.

         10                 I'm very pleased to be joined today

         11  by Gil Quiniones, Senior Vice President in charge of

         12  the Energy Office at the New York City Economic

         13  Development Corporation.  Gil's office has been an

         14  integral part of our work on PlaNYC and as we have

         15  done our work, we've also built upon the work of the

         16  Mayor's Energy Task Force and sought the direct

         17  assistance of several of its members.

         18                 As you know, the overall goals of the

         19  sustainability effort were developed through the

         20  work of the Sustainability Advisory Board and, of

         21  course, as always, we are very happy that Speaker

         22  Quinn and you, Chairman Gennaro, are Members of that

         23  Board and we always enjoy being here and talking to

         24  you and working with your staff who have contributed

         25  so much, as well as yourself.
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          2                 I'll leave to Gil an explanation of

          3  the challenges and opportunities that we face in

          4  meeting the energy goals the Mayor outlined in his

          5  speech in December.  What I'd like to do is put our

          6  energy goal in the context of the broader plan.  Our

          7  sustainability effort integrates the three themes of

          8  planning for positive growth, investing responsibly

          9  to maintain and improve our infrastructure and

         10  considering the environment in all of our decisions.

         11    Excuse me.

         12                 The challenge that growth causes our

         13  energy system is clear.  It's some time ago now that

         14  the Mayor's Energy Task Force identified that New

         15  York City's energy needs on peak days would exceed

         16  its supply within a few years.  I think we all

         17  appreciate  --  thanks  --  that the specter of

         18  rolling blackouts or brownouts is a grave threat to

         19  our economy, our health and our quality of life.

         20  With our population growing to 9.1 million by 2030,

         21  and our City's total employment projected to grow

         22  from 3.5 to 4.3 million, this will get even worse.

         23                 But it's important for us all to

         24  recognize that while power supply is a prerequisite

         25  for growth, with current trends, we will need
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          2  additional power even if we don't grow at all in

          3  terms of population or employment, because New

          4  Yorkers and New York businesses are using more and

          5  more power every day.

          6                 Since 1975, New York City's per

          7  capita energy consumption has increased, on average,

          8  1.4 percent a year.  This is lower than the national

          9  average.  But, by comparison, California has managed

         10  to keep per capita consumption virtually flat with

         11  an aggressive set of energy efficiency incentives,

         12  rules and educational efforts.

         13                 Growth, however, complicates our

         14  situation because it also means that the old answer

         15  to this problem isn't acceptable any longer because

         16  it would conflict with our other needs.  The old

         17  answer would be just to find new locations in the

         18  City for new power plants.  But, with an acute need

         19  for housing and for park land, the need to improve

         20  air quality, especially in those environmentally

         21  disadvantaged neighborhoods where most of our power

         22  plants are, and the need to reduce our carbon

         23  footprint, we can't just build more of the same.

         24                 We need to think more creatively.  We

         25  need to take seriously both supply creation and
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          2  demand management and to think about how the grid

          3  itself would need to be improved in order to provide

          4  the reliability we need.

          5                 The Mayor placed our energy goal

          6  within the section of the plan called MaintaiNYC,

          7  because this is really about reinvesting in a system

          8  that already exists.  The need for responsible

          9  investment in energy is clear.  New Yorkers pay the

         10  highest energy prices in America.  But, it doesn't

         11  have to be this way.

         12                 The problem is that we haven't

         13  mobilized the investments that would bring cleaner,

         14  better and cheaper power to our City.  Whether it's

         15  new power plants in New Jersey, the repowering of

         16  existing power plants or the construction of

         17  increased transmission capacity, energy investments

         18  have a real concrete payback to New Yorkers in the

         19  form of lower energy prices.  That's because one

         20  reason our energy prices are so high is that our

         21  capacity is constrained.  Additional capacity would

         22  mean lower prices and the eventual retirement of the

         23  oldest dirtiest plants in the fleet.

         24                 The problem is that we currently

         25  don't have the mechanisms to do long- term planning
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          2  for New York City's power market.  In some other

          3  parts of the country, entities undertake long- term

          4  planning that ensure that capacity is brought on-

          5  line in advance of demand.  Here, we rely only on a

          6  short- term capacity market, even though power

          7  plants are long- term investments.  So, one question

          8  we face is, how do we mobilize the private sector

          9  investments that will create the power supply we

         10  want?

         11                 Finally, there is no escaping the

         12  fact that energy is intimately related to the

         13  environment, which is our third theme of GreeNYC.

         14  Our power plants are among the most important single

         15  sources of air pollution.  Perhaps even more

         16  importantly, electricity production alone probably

         17  accounts for than a third of New York City's entire

         18  carbon footprint.  And, our current sources of

         19  electricity that serve this City are actually more

         20  carbon intensive than the average in New York State.

         21                 As a result, any approach to

         22  achieving our energy goal, while also achieving our

         23  other goals, will have to take carbon and air

         24  pollution into account.  We will need to take the

         25  steps that make our power plants more efficient.  We
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          2  will need to foster the use of renewable energy and

          3  we will, perhaps hardest of all, need to stop the

          4  continued growth in New York's energy demand.

          5                 That doesn't mean we need to sit

          6  around in the dark.  In fact, it's the best way to

          7  prevent blackouts.  But, in a growing City, it will

          8  not be an easy challenge and it will require, most

          9  of all, us to think about our buildings.  People

         10  often think of new buildings when they think about

         11  green buildings, but roughly 85 percent of the

         12  buildings that we will have in New York City in the

         13  year 2030 are already with us today. So, we must

         14  think about how to make our existing buildings more

         15  efficient.

         16                 Reducing energy may be among the most

         17  challenging goals that we'll need to achieve, that

         18  we'll need to achieve to make New York sustainable.

         19  We see that California has been a leader in capping

         20  energy growth, but they've done so at that rate of

         21  keeping per capita growth steady and if we are to

         22  reduce our overall carbon footprint, we actually

         23  need to reduce carbon, we need to reduce per capita

         24  consumption.

         25                 That effort would have major benefits
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          2  because not only would it help the environment and

          3  reduce the energy bill of the people who reduce

          4  their own consumption, the reduction and demand

          5  would actually decrease electricity prices for all

          6  New Yorkers.  Energy is a perfect example of how

          7  long- term investments can have massive returns in

          8  the short- as well as long- term and have both

          9  economic and environmental paybacks. Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you

         11  Rohit, I appreciate your statement.  We'll pose

         12  questions after Gil makes his remarks.

         13                 MR. QUINIONES:  Good morning Chairman

         14  Gennaro and Members of the two Committees.  I

         15  appreciate the opportunity to testify on the energy-

         16  related goals in the Mayor's Long- Term Strategic

         17  Plan for New York City, which is known as

         18  PlaNYC2030.

         19                 For the record, I am Gil Quiniones,

         20  Senior Vice President of Energy and

         21  Telecommunications at the New York City Economic

         22  Development Corporation and the City's Energy Policy

         23  Coordinator.  My professional background is in

         24  energy policy planning and management.

         25                 The Economic Development
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          2  Corporation's Energy Department addresses energy-

          3  related matters for the City, in coordination with

          4  various agencies.  We have been working very closely

          5  with the Mayor's Office of Long Term Planning and

          6  Sustainability, the PlaNYC2030 Advisory Board and a

          7  team of consultants to develop the long- term energy

          8  plan for the City. We've also participated in the

          9  various outreach meetings that have been going on as

         10  part of the PlaNYC process and have been integrating

         11  the ideas and perspectives of New Yorkers into our

         12  work.

         13                 Two of the goals in the plan are

         14  primarily related to energy, reducing global

         15  warming, primarily CO2 emissions by more than 30

         16  percent and providing cleaner and more reliable

         17  power.  If we want to meet these goals, we need to

         18  take steps now.  We anticipate that the projected

         19  rise in the City's population and economy will

         20  strain our aging energy infrastructure.  By 2030,

         21  the demand for heating fuels is expected to rise by

         22  14 percent and the demand for power is expected to

         23  rise by almost 50 percent, resulting in a major

         24  increase in CO2 emissions.

         25                 First, coordinated action is require
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          2  to reverse the increasing trend of consumption.  We

          3  will need an aggressive, unprecedented effort to

          4  moderate our use of heating fuels and electricity in

          5  buildings.  Buildings account for approximately 70

          6  percent of the City's carbon footprint and

          7  transportation and other sources account for the

          8  rest.  Residences alone account for almost 30

          9  percent, businesses and institutions account for

         10  another 30 percent and government buildings account

         11  for roughly ten percent.

         12                 For each customer group, there are

         13  specific opportunities to reduce energy consumption

         14  and CO2 emissions and we are working to find the

         15  most effective ways to target these opportunities.

         16  Second, we will need an effective strategy on the

         17  supply side to upgrade the City's aging fleet of

         18  power plants with clean, efficient technology,

         19  expand our transmission and distribution systems and

         20  diversify our fuel supply portfolio.

         21                 The City is served by a mix of in-

         22  City power plants and power imports from the rest of

         23  the state and from New Jersey.  The New York

         24  Independent System Operator says we will need around

         25  900 megawatts of additional capacity in the City by

                                                            42

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  2015.  On top of that, we need to start replacing

          3  the City's older gas and oil plants.  Our power

          4  plants, on average, are 30 years old, with the

          5  oldest running plant first constructed in 1951.

          6                 Older plants use out- of- date

          7  technology, which requires more fuel to run and

          8  discharges more CO2 and other emissions than newer

          9  technology.  The recent addition of two new power

         10  plants in the City, NYPA's 500 megawatt New Poletti

         11  Combined Cycle plant and SCS Astoria Energy's 500

         12  megawatt power plant has helped to secure our power

         13  supply for now.  But, much more needs to be done.

         14                 Regarding transmission, deregulation

         15  has made it more difficult to increase our access to

         16  power imports from other regions.  We need to create

         17  a regional transmission plan and ensure cost

         18  recovery for transmission investments approved

         19  through the planning process.  Expanding the

         20  transmission system will reduce the high cost of

         21  transmission bottlenecks and increase the City's

         22  ability to import power from clean sources like wind

         23  farms.

         24                 We also need to focus on diversifying

         25  and expanding our gas supply infrastructure.  The
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          2  City should support the development of new liquified

          3  natural gas or LNG projects and new natural gas

          4  interstate pipelines to serve regional needs. There

          5  must, this must be located in an environmentally

          6  sensitive way, but we also must recognize that they

          7  are critical to our long- term energy security.

          8                 Achieving these goals may require

          9  adjustments to the way our energy market works

         10  today.  The deregulation of the electric sector has

         11  created a major challenge for financing new power

         12  projects because potential new producers seek long-

         13  term contracts to sell their electricity before

         14  making major investments, while utilities and other

         15  load serving entities are reluctant to enter into

         16  long- term supply contracts that allow new projects

         17  to obtain financing.

         18                 The two recent power plant additions

         19  in the City were done through long- term contracts

         20  and a potential repowering in Astoria by the U.S.

         21  Power Generating Company.  One that would increase

         22  our supply, reduce pollution in the neighborhood,

         23  reducing carbon emissions and lower the City's

         24  energy prices is already permitted but awaits the

         25  long- term contract that would unlock private
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          2  capital.  Long- term contracting can help to spur

          3  needed investment in the generated, generation

          4  sector.

          5                 The lack of long- term contracts,

          6  however, reveals a more fundamental flaw in the way

          7  our energy market works.  No one, not the PSC, not

          8  the ISO, not Con Edison, not the state, not the

          9  City, is charged with the development and execution

         10  of a regional energy plan that recognizes not only

         11  the need for reliable power, but also other

         12  important policy goals, such as cleaning up the

         13  environment, moderating prices to consumers and

         14  minimizing land use impacts.  It may be that we need

         15  to require one of the existing entities or a new one

         16  to undertake such a role.

         17                 Another important part of our

         18  strategy is appropriate energy legislation.  First,

         19  Albany needs to reenact Article Ten, the power plant

         20  siting law.  Without Article Ten, it will be much

         21  more difficult to build the new power plants we will

         22  need and to promote repowering of existing plants.

         23  Second, we will need legislative action to create

         24  new planting processes, both at the state level and

         25  at the utility level.  Third, we should support the
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          2  Northeast Regional Greenhouse Gas Initiative, also

          3  known as RGGI, which will set targets for reducing

          4  CO2 emissions from power plants.

          5                 I hope my testimony has been helpful

          6  to the Council.  As you can see, the Administration

          7  shares your concerns and fully recognizes the need

          8  to provide cleaner, more reliable power for every

          9  New Yorker by upgrading our energy infrastructure

         10  and reducing consumption.  Once again, I appreciate

         11  the opportunity to appear before you and I would be

         12  happy to answer any questions you may have.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you Gil,

         14  I appreciate your statement.  I just have a couple

         15  of things to go over here. You don't have to worry,

         16  I'm not going to go on a whole 264 thing.

         17                 Now, in your statement, Gil, both

         18  your statement and Rohit's statement really make the

         19  case for very decisive action and one sentence

         20  that's in your testimony, Gil, is we, meaning the

         21  City, we need an aggressive, unprecedented effort to

         22  moderate our use of electricity in buildings and

         23  that buildings account for 70 percent of the City's

         24  carbon footprint.  This would be a slogan for Intro.

         25  264, in that we need aggressive action, we need
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          2  unprecedented effort in order to moderate our use of

          3  electricity in buildings, which is really what the

          4  essence of 264 is about.

          5                 While not putting you on the hook in

          6  terms of a position on 264, because I don't want to

          7  put you in that box, but I guess I'll ask like

          8  almost a rhetorical question.  Do you see the irony

          9  in sort of your statements, you know, juxtaposed

         10  with the statement of the previous witness?  Do you

         11  at least see the irony?

         12                 MR. QUINIONES:  I don't think so.  I

         13  actually think they're consistent.  When we

         14  mentioned the need for an unprecedented action, it

         15  really speaks to the need of a portfolio solutions.

         16  It will be massive education campaigns.  It will

         17  require policy and executive action.  It will

         18  require legislation, some recommendations will

         19  require legislation and others will require

         20  regulatory action, whether it's before the New York

         21  State PSC or at the federal level.

         22                 It's, it's going to take a portfolio

         23  of solutions to get to where we need to be.  In

         24  fact, when we have situations of, when the grid is

         25  being strained, we do have empirical evidence that
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          2  public appeal and public education have been

          3  effective.

          4                 In my years, working at Con Edison,

          5  before joining the Administration, it was a very

          6  effective tool to target certain neighborhoods and

          7  certain businesses to respond to the needs of Con

          8  Edison, at the time, for reliability.

          9                 So, we, there is, again, empirical

         10  evidence that outreach, massive educational

         11  campaigns with targeted approach can be very

         12  effective and I echo Commissioner Walsh's

         13  recommendation this morning.  I don't think they

         14  are, what our statement today, or my statement and

         15  my testimony is inconsistent with what he said.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Could you give

         17  us examples of educational campaigns that have been

         18  successful and that might be relevant to the issue

         19  that we're talking about today?

         20                 MR. QUINIONES:  When I was with Con

         21  Edison, there was a program and it's, by the way,

         22  normal practice when we are in the summer period,

         23  the hottest of the hottest days of the summer and

         24  the grid is constrained, there are specific areas

         25  that we already know ahead of time we need to reach
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          2  out to, both not only small businesses, but also

          3  large businesses, in anticipation of a grid

          4  reliability issue.

          5                 What we've done, and this is normal,

          6  normal practice, what we've done, all the customer

          7  representatives of Con Ed, every summer, there's a

          8  summer preparation program of outreach to those

          9  customers in those specific areas and it's been

         10  pretty effective.  There's empirical evidence that

         11  when you do that ahead of time, on an annual ongoing

         12  basis, that they've been pretty effective.  And, I

         13  think, the City stepping in and complimenting what

         14  the utilities are already doing will only make those

         15  initiatives more effective.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I'd like to

         17  recognize that we're joined by Council Member

         18  Koppell.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  My apologies

         20  Mr. Chairman, I was next door at the Hearing and

         21  couldn't get here until now.  I'm sorry.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.  Yes, I

         23  heard it's pretty raucous in there, you  --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  No, no,

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  --  Wanted to
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          2  come to a more serene Hearing.  I don't blame you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  No.  It's

          4  interesting

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.  I'd also

          6  like to mention, for the record, that we were joined

          7  briefly by Council Member Peter Vallone, who also is

          8  participating, in a very significant way, in the

          9  important Hearing next door.

         10                 Okay, I guess just the parting shot

         11  on 264 that I'll just read into the record is from

         12  John Banks, the Vice President of Con Ed.  I won't

         13  read his statement in its entirety, but his

         14  concluding paragraph is that the measure before the

         15  Committee, meaning Intro. 264, to amend the

         16  Administrative Code to prohibit the opening of

         17  windows and doors while operating air conditioning

         18  systems is one that the company supports.

         19                 It further states that allowing

         20  cooled air to escape into the outdoors is a waste of

         21  energy and needlessly raises the cost of a

         22  customer's bill, as well as increasing the demand on

         23  our infrastructure.  Certainly, this is an

         24  organization that has, as you said, has done a lot

         25  in the way of public education.  So, I think we're
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          2  just going to have to agree to disagree.  But, I

          3  still love you guys.

          4                 Okay, starting with Gil's statement,

          5  I made some little notes here.  Okay, in your

          6  statement, on page three, you're talking about the

          7  New York ISO says we'll need about 900 megawatts of

          8  additional capacity in the City by 2015.

          9                 I guess it's just, previously, when

         10  they had been on the record, indicating that we

         11  would need like 2,700 megawatts by 2008 or whatever

         12  and then that was subsequently revised to say that

         13  our energy needs, I believe, will be met by through

         14  2012.  I guess, you know, they're trying to make

         15  predictions on shifting sand here.  What's the level

         16  of confidence that this 900 megawatt number might

         17  not jump to some much higher number?

         18                 MR. QUINIONES:  This 900 number, in

         19  my testimony, is the cumulative amount that will be

         20  needed by 2015.  There will be some megawatts needed

         21  before that.  My understanding, I don't have the

         22  exact number, but I believe the, there will be some

         23  megawatts needed, added to the system by 2011.  It's

         24  less than 900 megawatts  --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right, yes.
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          2                 MR. QUINIONES:  --  And  --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Which would

          4  seemingly conflict with the ISO's recent assertion

          5  that our energy needs would be okay through 2012.

          6                 MR. QUINIONES:  Well, it's, it's, the

          7  way they do the, it's dynamic, you know, as we add

          8  power plants into our system.  If you recall, we

          9  just added two or three power plants in our system.

         10  The NYPA plant and SCS Astoria, Con Edison upgraded

         11  their plant on the, on the East Side.  Those new

         12  additions caused to push out the date and the

         13  amounts that are needed.

         14                 Part of the process in determining

         15  this number is an annual process of the ISO, which

         16  most of the, all of the utilities participate,

         17  called the Comprehensive Reliability Planning

         18  Process, and they look at all of the zones in the

         19  state every year, they look at what's been added,

         20  what's been taken out, what's the load growth in

         21  those areas, and they, they do all the necessary

         22  analysis to determine every year a forecast.  So,

         23  every year, that number will change and we should

         24  expect that that number should change.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes and
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          2  certainly that's a possibility, but when we're

          3  planning for the future with potential changes, I

          4  was wondering if there was, what level of

          5  possibility would there be that this 900 megawatt of

          6  additional capacity number needed by 2015 could

          7  spike to something significantly more than that akin

          8  to what was projected by the ISO when they

          9  originally said we were going to need almost 3,000

         10  megawatts by like next year or something?

         11                 MR. QUINIONES:  I think at that time,

         12  they were, they weren't counting what was coming on-

         13  line  --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I see.

         15                 MR. QUINIONES:  -- And  --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  So, you think

         17  this is a safe number, the 900?

         18                 MR. QUINIONES:  It's, it should not

         19   --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Fair enough.

         21                 MR. QUINIONES:  --  It will shift,

         22  but it will not shift in a very significant way  --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

         24                 MR. QUINIONES:  --  Based on history

         25  and track record of the, this type of projection.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.  Also, on

          3  page four of your statement, you talked about the

          4  need to focus on diversifying and expanding our gas

          5  supply infrastructure.  You have a statement in here

          6  that the City should support the development of new

          7  liquified natural gas or LNG progress and new

          8  natural gas interstate pipelines to serve regional

          9  needs.

         10                 There's a, I guess, the project that

         11  comes to mind would be the Broad Water Project, to

         12  be potentially sited in Long Island Sound and

         13  there's a lot of adverse reaction to that project

         14  from I know Nassau and Suffolk County.  But, is it,

         15  to what extent would the installation of the Broad

         16  Water Project sort of bode well for the City and

         17  would that, on some level, answer the call that you

         18  put forward in your statement about the need to

         19  diversify and expand these kinds of facilities?

         20                 MR. QUINIONES:  It is, it is one of

         21  the projects that will contribute to diversifying

         22  our fuel supply.  Others include  --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  How would that

         24  work?  How would that work exactly?

         25                 MR. QUINIONES:  Because  --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  How would it

          3  benefit New York City? Because it's what I'm really

          4  looking, because we've taken a position earlier in

          5  this Committee through passage of a Resolution that

          6  this particular project should be judged on its

          7  merits.

          8                 Sometimes maybe a project like this

          9  has a lot of, all kinds of things get thrown into

         10  the mix and it almost becomes kind of a hysteria, so

         11  to speak, and we had advocated at this Committee

         12  that this project should be judged on its merits.

         13  From you, I'd like to, not to spend too much time on

         14  it, but, you know, what would the merits of this

         15  project be for New York City? How would it help us?

         16                 MR. QUINIONES:  Well, a little

         17  background on how we get supply, natural gas supply

         18  in New York City.  Most of our gas supply comes from

         19  the Gulf Coast and from Canada.  So, and we are sort

         20  of at the end of the pipeline from the Gulf Coast

         21  and from Canada.  Therefore, we are reliant on those

         22  two sources of gas and everybody else's increase and

         23  need of gas along the way before it reaches us here

         24  in New York City.

         25                 So, adding a third supply of gas,
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          2  where it is not coming from the Gulf Coast or from

          3  Canada, will diversify and more contribute to the

          4  security of our supply of gas in our region, not

          5  just in New York City.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

          7                 MR. QUINIONES:  So, that's one

          8  important aspect of that project.  The other

          9  important aspect of that project is, because of the

         10  volumes that will be injected into our system, it

         11  will have an effect of lowering gas prices in the

         12  region, including New York City, which then will

         13  lower our electricity prices because natural gas is

         14  primarily the fuel used to produced electricity.

         15                 So, there is an economic benefit and

         16  there's a security benefit to New York City and, in

         17  fact, we echo your position that this project should

         18  be judged on the merits, the regulatory process

         19  should be allowed to proceed and we had indicated

         20  that in a letter to, in our intervention of that

         21  case before the Federal Energy Regulatory

         22  Commission.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Oh, so what

         24  role did the City play in that?  You  --

         25                 MR. QUINIONES:  We are an intervener.
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          2    One of the many interveners in the, in the case,

          3  deciding case, before the Federal Energy Regulatory

          4  Commission.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, thank

          6  you, thank you. On the next page, there's a

          7  paragraph that talks about a fundamental flaw in the

          8  way our energy market works, about how nobody, not

          9  the PSC, the ISO, Con Ed, the state, the City, is

         10  charged with the development and execution of a

         11  regional energy plan.  You posit that we may need to

         12  require one of these entities or maybe form a new

         13  one that would undertake such a role.

         14                 The section after that in your

         15  testimony is when you talk about legislation.  I

         16  guess, wouldn't the creation of such an entity be a

         17  legislative initiative or how would that work?  You

         18  don't include the creation of such a new entity or

         19  the designation of one of these other entities, you

         20  know, to do this regional energy planning and

         21  wouldn't that be done by legislation?  How would

         22  that work?

         23                 MR. QUINIONES:  There is actually a

         24  bill, a state law that expired, called Article Six.

         25  It's a planning bill. That can be one of the
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          2  mechanisms to define or redefine  --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

          4                 MR. QUINIONES:  --  And make this

          5  proposal happen. So, you're right, there may be some

          6  legislation required or it could be potentially a

          7  regulatory action as well.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  By whom?  By

          9  whom?

         10                 MR. QUINIONES:  By the Public Service

         11  Commission.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Now, pardon my

         13  ignorance on this, but once upon a time when, I

         14  guess, Article Six, as you state, was in effect, we

         15  had an entity that did regional planning for this?

         16  Is that  --

         17                 MR. QUINIONES:  Correct.  It was, it,

         18  when Article Six was still in effect, it was the

         19  State Energy Office, which then became NYSERDA did

         20  the state's energy regional plan.  The last one

         21  issued, I believe, was in 2002.  Then the bill or

         22  the law, I'm sorry, the law expired, and it hasn't

         23  been reenacted. It's one of the things that we've

         24  been advocating  --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I see.
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          2                 MR. QUINIONES:  --  Along with

          3  Article Ten.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Why did that

          5  expire because they couldn't agree on a successor to

          6  it or?

          7                 MR. QUINIONES:  It was always

          8  attached as a package, my understanding, with the

          9  Article Ten bill and, therefore, the complete

         10  package was never reenacted.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I see.  With

         12  regard to Article Ten, the power plant siting law, I

         13  think one of the, not that I'm an expert on it, I

         14  think one of the criticisms of Article Ten, when we

         15  were living under it, was the lack or the non-

         16  existence of any kind of local participation in

         17  siting plans for power plants.  It was a completely

         18  state- driven process, as I understood.  In the

         19  reenactment or re- creation or whatever of Article

         20  Ten, would there be, is there a movement to have

         21  local involvement in the siting of power plants?  Is

         22  that one of the hangups in that we haven't done

         23  this?

         24                 MR. QUINIONES:  In fact, about a year

         25  or two ago, the City led an effort with NRDC and the
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          2  Independent Power Producers of New York and we put

          3  forth a compromised bill.  We analyzed the bills

          4  from the Governor, at the time, from the Senate and

          5  the Assembly, working with NRDC and the Independent

          6  Power Producers of New York, we came up with a

          7  proposed compromised bill that addressed the issue

          8  that you raise and many others.  Unfortunately, at

          9  the time, again, it wasn't reenacted --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I see.

         11                 MR. QUINIONES:  --  We were

         12  disappointed that, that they didn't push it through.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.  I'd

         14  like to recognize that we're joined by Council

         15  Member White from Queens. A pleasure to have you

         16  here Tom and Council Member Mark-Viverito has

         17  questions.  I recognize Council Member

         18  Mark-Viverito.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO:  Thank

         20  you Mr. Chair and good morning.

         21                 MR. QUINIONES:  Good morning.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK-VIVERITO:

         23  Actually, I wanted to address myself to Mr.

         24  Aggarwala.  You know, I like to think very locally.

         25  That's, I think, obviously, everything starts
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          2  locally and we need to look at it that way.  In your

          3  testimony, which, obviously, is very true with

          4  regards to looking at the existing use, existing

          5  buildings and how do we make existing buildings more

          6  energy- efficient as a way of reducing energy demand

          7  and energy use.

          8                 I guess I know that your office is in

          9  the process of having hearings and that there's

         10  going to be this more comprehensive plan, action

         11  plan, that's going to result out of it.  So, I

         12  guess, I maybe wanted to contribute a little bit to

         13  the thinking in that process.

         14                 I just recently, my office recently,

         15  in conjunction with HPD, held a homeowners night.

         16  HPD goes around to all the districts and does

         17  homeowners night.  They do mailings to every single

         18  homeowner in the district and encourage them to come

         19  to learn about what kind of loan opportunities and

         20  loan programs exist within HPD to rehab or to

         21  renovate buildings or to bring them up to code, et

         22  cetera.

         23                 I'm thinking that it would be really

         24  interesting to look at what opportunities might be

         25  available to make a loan program that would
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          2  specifically allow homeowners to retrofit their

          3  homes.  Because, I'm actually looking at that

          4  possibility of how do you make your building more

          5  green, more friendly to the environment and that

          6  that be an incentive to really encourage local

          7  homeowners to look at that as an option.

          8                 I think that that's something I think

          9  we should look at and how can existing City agencies

         10  look at it from that way as well.  When you talk

         11  about SBS and the Commissioner, in his, rightly so,

         12  was extolling the virtues of an educational campaign

         13  on the issue of the Intro. We're discussing today.

         14  But, we should also be looking at business owners or

         15  local businesses, how can they be more green and

         16  whether there is either program or incentives or

         17  loans that would incentivize that behavior, you

         18  know.

         19                 Also, I know that with the Upper

         20  Manhattan Empowerment Zone, I had a similar

         21  conversation that they really should look at maybe

         22  loan programs that will incentivize businesses to

         23  really look at options to be more green.  So, I

         24  think that, I mean, these are the things that I, how

         25  do I, and I'm obviously hoping that the working
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          2  group is looking at that, like how each existing

          3  agency within the City can look at that and what

          4  approaches they can take.  So, I'm just trying, I

          5  mean, those are some initial thoughts, but maybe if

          6  you could respond a little bit about maybe that line

          7  of thinking in general or what your office is doing

          8  to that effect.

          9                 MR. AGGARWALA:  Sure, I'd be happy

         10  to.  Thank you for those suggestions.  In fact, some

         11  of those are at least in the philosophy and the in

         12  the spirit of some of the things that not only had

         13  we been thinking about and had members of our

         14  advisory board recommend that we consider, but also

         15  that we've heard as we've gone around the City.

         16  Because, we have heard from homeowners and, in fact,

         17  from renters as well, that they know there are

         18  things they could probably do.  They don't know

         19  enough about exactly what and they know there's a

         20  payback.  But, you know, a small business person or

         21  a homeowner may not have the capital on hand to

         22  necessarily do something that does have a payback.

         23  So, thinking about financing is important, so I

         24  certainly appreciate your, your suggestion.

         25                 Of course, we are always thinking
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          2  about, and it's perhaps the, the most difficult, but

          3  in many ways, the most critical thing for us to

          4  think about, is exactly how would we deliver these

          5  things.  Because we can set targets and we can have

          6  ideas about what ought to happen, but until we can

          7  figure out who's going to do what, how much is it

          8  going to cost, can we line up the money, can we do

          9  all of those things, we don't actually have a plan.

         10  So, I'm very aware of that.

         11                 But, let me step back and very

         12  briefly give you a little bit of the flavor of the

         13  kind of analysis that Gil's team and my team have

         14  been doing on this topic.  One of the things we want

         15  to do and the percentages of the carbon footprint

         16  that Gil cited and that I've also alluded to, I

         17  think, are very important to inform our strategic

         18  direction.  And, I take a leap from the Chairman in

         19  a previous Hearing, we very much follow the Willie

         20  Hutton (phonetic) school here.  We are going to look

         21  for carbon and energy savings where the carbon and

         22  the energy savings are.

         23                 So, what we've tried to do is

         24  understand what sectors of the City's economy are

         25  the greatest energy consumers, which led to the
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          2  numbers that Gil cited, that 70 percent of our

          3  carbon emissions, roughly speaking, and we're still

          4  refining our numbers as we complete our Citywide

          5  inventory, but that's our current working number

          6  derived from buildings.  Of that, a little less than

          7  half, so 30 percent of the Citywide total or perhaps

          8  35 percent of the Citywide total has to do with

          9  electricity and the other half has to do with

         10  heating fuel and other fuels directly consumed in

         11  the buildings themselves.

         12                 With that, we've then tried to

         13  understand, and we are, again, continuing to refine

         14  this, what kinds of buildings consume the energy and

         15  for what purposes do they consume them. So,

         16  understanding, you know, would it make sense to

         17  direct our attention first, for example, say at

         18  single family homes with lighting, right? Or with

         19  commercial buildings and heating or something like

         20  that.  Or, is it just that all single family homes

         21  have a package of things that they ought to consider

         22  doing and, therefore, it's targeted at a building

         23  class or a class of constituents or consumers.

         24                 So, that's the work we're currently

         25  trying to think about.  Of course, what that then
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          2  leads us to is, well, if you're going to try to

          3  mobilize large commercial buildings, that suggests

          4  one type of approach, because many of those, they

          5  have capital, they're a relatively small number of

          6  decision- makers, they have organizations that

          7  represent them well.  That might lead to one way of

          8  delivering a program, whereas something far more

          9  dispersed, like small businesses and homeowners

         10  might have different concerns and you might need to

         11  reach them in different ways.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARK- VIVERITO:  Well,

         13  I just want to respond to that, because I understand

         14  that, and I've said this before, in this era of

         15  instant gratification, we always want to go after

         16  the big bang, you know, what is it that we're going

         17  to --  and I understand that, but I think that we

         18  cannot overlook starting the pattern of you have to,

         19  this is about changing patterns of behavior and

         20  changing a way of thinking.  That has to start

         21  locally.  You know, we can't ignore that aspect of

         22  it.

         23                 I think that a lot of times with this

         24  kind of thinking and the direction, I understand

         25  what you're saying, but we kind of are always
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          2  holding sort of like, okay, the big guys to a

          3  different standard that we might not be complying

          4  with ourselves.

          5                 I take, you know, for example,

          6  recycling.  I would love for there to be some sort

          7  of an analysis done about City agencies and

          8  ourselves and how do we recycle, because I bet you

          9  we fall way short.  Yet, we're holding homeowners

         10  and businesses accountable to a standard that we're

         11  not holding ourselves responsible for.  You know, I

         12  think that that's something that I, and I think is

         13  sometimes wrong with our way of thinking is that we

         14  have to start local and that's always overlooked.

         15                 So, that's my little criticism and

         16  I'm hoping that the work of the Task Force may look

         17  at some of that and hopefully educational campaigns,

         18  mass media- wise is always important as a way of

         19  doing that local work as well, and that there is

         20  some thought and some investment being done to that

         21  effect.  I understand the looking at the big

         22  commercial buildings or looking at the big

         23  consumers, but we're not going to really tackle this

         24  issue responsibly if we don't start locally.  But,

         25  that's my two cents and thank you for your
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          2  responses.

          3                 MR. AGGARWALA:  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you

          5  Melissa.   Council Member Koppell.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Mr.

          7  Chairman, I just couldn't help observe as I heard

          8  you rightly discuss the need for a statewide power

          9  plant siting law that I negotiating the Article Ten

         10  as Chairman of the Environmental Committee in Albany

         11  in the seventies.  You know, maybe we could get some

         12  better people up there because we did come to

         13  compromise with, I remember, Senator McFarland

         14  (phonetic) and Assemblyman Landers, who head the

         15  Corporations Committee when I headed the

         16  Environmental Committee. We did put the power

         17  plants, a very tough job, because it creates all

         18  kinds of problems, both positive and negative

         19  incentives, but we were able to do in the seventies,

         20  why can't they do it now?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I think I have

         22  the answer for that because we don't have Oliver

         23  Koppell in Albany any more.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  I appreciate

         25  that.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  I think that's

          3  part of it. I think  --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  I appreciate

          5    that  --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  --  I hit the

          7  nail on the head.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  It was one

          9  of the most difficult negotiations that I was

         10  involved in and that's, but it is long overdue to

         11  have a statewide siting law.  One of the reasons

         12  that I think the law was allowed to lapse was there

         13  was a time when we weren't building many power

         14  plants.  But, that time is probably over at this

         15  point and I think that the need for some rational

         16  approach here is urgent.  I agree with you,

         17  obviously agree with you, so it's 30 years ago we

         18  did it.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         20  Thank you Council Member Koppell.  Rohit, as I go

         21  through your statement here, on the second page, you

         22  talk about the fact that we haven't mobilized the

         23  investments, haven't mobilized the investments that

         24  would bring cleaner, better, cheaper power to our

         25  City and about transmission capacity and new power
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          2  plants in New Jersey.

          3                 I guess my question is, aren't we

          4  somewhat constrained by the 80 percent rule and how

          5  much we can realistically expect will come in from

          6  outside the City?  Isn't that like a real limiting

          7  factor and how much can we really expect to come in

          8  from the outside?  How much of a difference would

          9  that make?

         10                 MR. AGGARWALA:  Well, a couple of

         11  things and, in fact, I'll turn it over to Gil

         12  because he's much more the technical expert on this.

         13    But, the 80 percent rule is, first of all, it's a

         14  state policy.  So, the policy could be changed,

         15  yeah, and it was imposed to provide reliability

         16  reassurance  --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Of course.

         18                 MR. AGGARWALA:  --  Both to the City

         19  and to the rest of the, to the rest of the state.

         20  However, one of the things that I think is little

         21  appreciated is that there are already is it two

         22  plants or one now and one coming on- line, plants

         23  that are not in the five boroughs, but because they

         24  are exclusively connected to  --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Oh, I see  --
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          2                 MR. AGGARWALA:  --  New York City

          3  grid  --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  --  They count.

          5                 MR. AGGARWALA:  They count.  So, we

          6  can still meet our 80 percent if we can find

          7  dedicated sources that will be restricted to New

          8  York.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right, so

         10  they're like hardwired just for us.

         11                 MR. AGGARWALA:  Exactly.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.  Where

         13  are they?

         14                 MR. QUINIONES:  On December last

         15  year, NYPA, on behalf of New York City governmental

         16  customers, awarded an RFP to a project that will

         17  connect Northern New Jersey to West 49th Street, for

         18  500 megawatts.  So, that project will count as part

         19  of the in- City capacity rule.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Interesting,

         21  okay.  There you go.

         22                 MR. AGGARWALA:  Also, just if I

         23  could, it's important that new power plants and

         24  repowered power plants, there are two different

         25  approaches to getting at the same thing.  It -
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  What was that

          3  again?  Say that again.

          4                 MR. AGGARWALA:  New power plants  --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

          6                 MR. AGGARWALA:  --  And repowering

          7   --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

          9                 MR. AGGARWALA:  --  Existing power

         10  plants, there are kind of two approaches to getting

         11  at the same thing, right, because you can build a

         12  new power plant and then you wind up taking one of

         13  the older power plants off- line eventually.  Or,

         14  you can repower on- site.

         15                 At the end of the day, the key thing

         16  is that as a whole system, have we met our air

         17  quality, our emissions and our supply needs.  On a,

         18  the projects may differ on a project specific

         19  economic cost return and what have you basis.

         20  That's where you really do want to be mobilizing the

         21  private sector to make sure that those decisions are

         22  economic and that those projects are managed well.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you.

         24  This is for anyone, what role do you expect clean

         25  distributed generation and renewable energy to play
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          2  in realizing the energy goal that you talk about

          3  today?

          4                 MR. QUINIONES:  Well, it will  --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  The energy goal

          6  of PlaNYC.

          7                 MR. QUINIONES:  It will play a

          8  critical role.  In the short- term, it will largely

          9  be natural gas- based technologies.  But, over time,

         10  other types of distributed generation, such as

         11  solar, will probably become more cost effective and

         12  will be, become increasingly important components of

         13  clean DG.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Why is solar

         15  not regarded by some folks as cost- effective?  Now,

         16  is it the technology itself? Is it all, what's the

         17   --

         18                 MR. QUINIONES:  It's largely the

         19  maturity level of the technology itself and the cost

         20  of producing and installing the systems.  Now, with

         21  that said, if you look at the curve from the past,

         22  it's been dramatically going down.  So, at some

         23  point in time, we believe and we expect, that it

         24  will become a cost effective technology that should

         25  be part of the mix that we should look at because it
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          2  is carbon- free.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.  With

          4  regard to distributed generation, can you just speak

          5  on the current impediments that people who want to

          6  do DG encounter when trying to interact with Con Ed

          7  and get hooked into the grid and, you know,

          8  regulatory requirements and threshold amounts?  What

          9  do you see changing in that regard or what do you

         10  see as necessary to change in that regard to sort of

         11  herald in a new day of DG for New York City?

         12                 MR. QUINIONES:  I think a couple of

         13  things, one we have started already, so it's

         14  evolving as we speak.  In their last rate case,

         15  which was concluded in March, 2005, we had advocated

         16  and agreed with Con Ed that there ought to be more

         17  investments in their grid, specifically in their

         18  substations, to make sure that technically and

         19  operationally natural gas largely, distributed

         20  generation can be added safely and reliably in their

         21  grid.  So, that's, that's going on as we speak.

         22                 Over time, we need to further refine

         23  the interconnection requirements with Con Ed, not

         24  only with a traditional DG technology, but the newer

         25  one, solar, as that becomes a bigger portion of the,
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          2  of the pie.  And, the last component, also our

          3  stand- by rates.  That's a requirement where if the

          4  DG is not operating and the consumer is drawing

          5  power from the grid, they pay a certain amount to

          6  Con Ed and all the, that has to be designed so that

          7  it's not an impediment to installing DG.  So, those

          8  are the three areas that are currently evolving and

          9  improving, but, you know, there are some more work

         10  to be done and we expect to do those work.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.  It's

         12  the, it would be the PSC that would ultimately

         13  require Con Ed to move, let us say, the PSC kind of

         14  dictates the pace at which Con Ed has to embrace DG

         15  and move these processes along, would that be, is

         16  that right?

         17                 MR. QUINIONES:  Well, Con, the PSC

         18  will administer the proceedings but, usually, what

         19  has happened in the past is the City has taken a

         20  leadership role in bringing these issues to the PSC

         21  and to Con Ed and we've demanded that they

         22  accelerate those processes and they have.  In  --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

         24                 MR. QUINIONES:  --  The last rate

         25  case, a lot of significant movement, by working
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          2  together, PSC, Con Ed, the City --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

          4                 MR. QUINIONES:  --  And other active

          5  parties in these proceedings, you know, produced

          6  those developments so far.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.  I can

          8  understand how Con Ed might be reluctant to move

          9  forward quickly on that front. Are you getting some

         10  reluctance on the part of the PSC in moving in that

         11  direction or are they pretty much on board?

         12                 MR. QUINIONES:  They're pretty much

         13  on board  --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay.

         15                 MR. QUINIONES:  --  As well as Con

         16  Edison.  I think Con Edison has been  --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure, but

         18  they're the ones that have to do the work to make it

         19  happen  --

         20                 MR. QUINIONES:  Correct.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  --  So, PSC

         22  doesn't, so I can see their perspective.  I think

         23  what may be my final question, I talked about the

         24  role that DG would play in realizing the PlaNYC

         25  energy goal, how about smart meters?
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          2                 MR. QUINIONES:  That will be a part

          3  of the plan as well.  Smart meters in conjunction

          4  with real time pricing  --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes.  That's

          6  what I mean when  --

          7                 MR. QUINIONES:  And  --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  --  I say smart

          9  meters  --

         10                 MR. QUINIONES:  --  Real time pricing

         11  and demand response that  --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.

         13                 MR. QUINIONES:  --  Entire  --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes.

         15                 MR. QUINIONES:  But, that's an  --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Yes.

         17                 MR. QUINIONES:  --  You know,

         18  important component.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Because the

         20  smart meters are kind of like the portal into all of

         21  that world there.  Will that be part of the PlaNYC

         22  Plan, like a smart meter component?

         23                 MR. QUINIONES:  Yes.

         24                 MR. AGGARWALA:  Yeah, we're certainly

         25  trying to figure out exactly, I mean, it's one of
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          2  those things where we know that that's the goal we

          3  need to figure out  --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

          5                 MR. AGGARWALA:  --  How to get there

          6  and  --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

          8                 MR. AGGARWALA:  --  What the right

          9  answer is.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  When I said

         11  mystic, I meant mystic, so I see this is another

         12  mystic element to it for sure. Gentlemen, thanks so

         13  much for being here today.  We appreciate you being

         14  here, as we always do and  --

         15                 MR. AGGARWALA:  Thank you Mr.

         16  Chairman, pleasure.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  --  Thanks a

         18  lot.  Have a good weekend.

         19                 MR. QUINIONES:  Thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  You bet.  Next

         21  witness, Jason K. Babbie, Jason K. Babbie for

         22  NYPIRG.  Jason, thank you for being here today.  We

         23  appreciate it and always enjoy your testimony and

         24  the testimony of the good folks from NYPIRG.  Donna

         25  will give you the oath and then you can proceed with
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          2  your statement.

          3                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  In the

          4  testimony that you are about to give, do you swear

          5  or affirm to tell the truth, the whole truth and

          6  nothing but the truth?

          7                 MR. BABBIE:  I do.

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Jason, please.

         10                 MR. BABBIE:  Good afternoon.  I'm

         11  Jason K. Babbie, the Senior Environmental Policy

         12  Analyst for the New York Public Interest Research

         13  Group, NYPIRG.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Jason, you've

         15  got speak right into the microphone  --

         16                 MR. BABBIE:  Sorry.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  --  A little

         18  louder, it's difficult for us here.

         19                 MR. BABBIE:  Senior Environmental

         20  Policy Analyst for the New York Public Interest

         21  Research Group, NYPIRG, the largest environmental

         22  and consumer research and advocacy organization in

         23  New York State.  I'd like to thank Chairpersons

         24  Comrie and Gennaro and Members of the Committee for

         25  the opportunity to testify here today.
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          2                 NYPIRG supports the City moving

          3  forward with specific programs and requirements

          4  designed to provide cleaner and more reliable power

          5  for every New Yorker by upgrading the energy

          6  infrastructure, as stated in the Mayor's

          7  Sustainability Plan.  I'll also testify on Intro.

          8  264, making it illegal to run an air conditioner

          9  while having windows and doors open.

         10                 There are many steps that need to be

         11  taken in order to achieve the goal laid out by the

         12  Mayor.  I think one of the biggest ones is creating

         13  an office of energy, probably here in the City.

         14  There are, obviously, many intricacies with New

         15  York's infrastructure and there are, it's of

         16  particular interest and a particular problem.  And,

         17  of course, it's also laid out in the fact that New

         18  York State has lapsed its Article Six, as, it only

         19  complicates that even more, but also major

         20  metropolitan areas do have their own, their own

         21  office and we should too.

         22                 There also are three specific steps

         23  that this plan should focus on and in this order.

         24  One is reversing the trend to, of increasing demand,

         25  two is repowering outdated existing facilities and
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          2  three is relying on more clean and green renewable

          3  energy.

          4                 Lastly is New York City should work

          5  very closely with Department of Public Service and

          6  Con Ed to maintain, ensure the proper maintenance of

          7  Con Ed's distribution system.

          8                 On controlling demand, I'm not going

          9  to go through all of it, but suffice it to say, we

         10  don't need to live with the assumption of ever

         11  increasing demand.  In fact, we can reverse that

         12  trend.  It is the, it is one of the best ways that

         13  we can do it.  It's immediate, it's relatively cheap

         14  and there are multiple wins with public health, as

         15  well as reliability.

         16                 I won't go into all of those, but I

         17  want to sort of highlight the fact that the programs

         18  that are out there for energy efficiency and

         19  conservation are largely a state-based, they're New

         20  York State Energy Research Development Authority or

         21  NYSERDA and some by the New York Power Authority.

         22                 Unfortunately, NYSERDA's plan to,

         23  while very worthwhile on a state-wide level are

         24  based on single family-owned homes.  But, the Bronx,

         25  Brooklyn, Queens and Manhattan all have a higher
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          2  percentage of people living in poverty, rented and

          3  multi dwelling homes.  So, there's a big gap in

          4  there and that's where New York City is unique.

          5                 That's where, I think, New York

          6  City's programs and in demand management programs

          7  should focus and we should address that, because

          8  NYSERDA has done some steps to address their

          9  problems and to try and increase their presence and

         10  work done here in New York City.

         11                 However, there's always going to be a

         12  deficit, well, there isn't always, but, right now,

         13  there's a big deficit in the state financing of

         14  demand control measures.  Hopefully, that will be

         15  rectified, but, on a per capita basis, every state,

         16  New England, New Jersey, California, among others,

         17  spend more than we do and that should just simply

         18  not be the case for the Empire State.

         19                 There are also specific steps on

         20  demand control management that I want to briefly

         21  touch on.  One is to create a sizable rebate program

         22  for low-income residents to buy energy efficiency

         23  air conditioners, others to replace those outmoded

         24  efforts.  Second, is place a small fee on new

         25  construction to create a fund that encourages

                                                            82

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  modernizing home units in environmental justice and

          3  other areas to be more efficient. Another is to

          4  produce consumer education materials on a full range

          5  of life habits and their impacts, and major

          6  renovation programs.

          7                 I think this is also where Intro. 264

          8  comes in. You know, it seems ridiculous to be air

          9  conditioning the sidewalk on a hot summer day.  So,

         10  you're cooling the sidewalk while warming the

         11  climate as a whole.  You know, it also puts the

         12  undue stress and all of the things that were talked

         13  about here today that I will not go into.

         14                 I do have a few questions and

         15  comments as we move into this.  I do believe that

         16  the City should engage in an education campaign

         17  prior to the law, but not instead of the law. I

         18  think it's one of the things that can be a one-two

         19  step.  There will be questions that I think that

         20  need to be  --  and I think those educational

         21  materials should highlight the public health and

         22  public impacts of leaving, literally, the doors

         23  open.

         24                 The question with how this would

         25  enforced I think is one that probably, you know,
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          2  needs to be looked at a little bit more.  But, I

          3  would also like to see steeper penalties for chronic

          4  offenders, those that are sort of with a wanton

          5  disregard and that aren't going to be dissuade by an

          6  additional $200.00, but particularly the larger

          7  stores that may be able to absorb that cost much

          8  more easily.

          9                 Moving on, I just want to talk a

         10  little bit about modernizing or updating older power

         11  plants.  Repowering, you get, you know, very big

         12  winds of providing a lot more electricity to the

         13  grid, while having significant decreases in the

         14  amount of pollution that are out there.  This is

         15  critical given our aging infrastructure and the

         16  aging power plants in the state.  One approach could

         17  be having an age limit or a birthday for power

         18  plants, that after 30 years, you have to have a

         19  major investment and to increase your output while

         20  decreasing your pollution.

         21                 I do want to sort of go off comments

         22  here a little bit and the, and mention that I think

         23  that there is a big difference in looking at

         24  repowering versus adding a new, with the assumption

         25  that an older one will someday close down.  When
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          2  you're the ones living next to that old plant that

          3  will someday close down, every year, while it keeps

          4  running, while another one is also running, is a,

          5  the, you know, there's a big difference in your

          6  local air quality.  There's a difference in the

          7  amount of carbon that's put out into the air.  So,

          8  repowering should clearly and always be highly

          9  preferred.

         10                 You know, I think that that's, you

         11  know the City should moving into that, whether it's

         12  long- term contracts or other areas where we should

         13  really be pushing those efforts.

         14                 In addition, if we are looking at new

         15  power plants, we really do need to scrutinize

         16  environmental justice concerns and really protect

         17  the same communities that have continued to face the

         18  overburden.  That's been actually one of them major

         19  sticking points in the Article Ten debate in Albany.

         20  There's only been one proposal that was put out

         21  there, which was by the Assembly, that adequately

         22  addressed environmental justice communities'

         23  concerns.

         24                 Hopefully, there's a new dynamic in

         25  Albany and that it's, you know, it's something that
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          2  if we move forward with Article Ten, we can do so in

          3  a way that provides some of the developers, some of

          4  the certainty that they need, but without the

          5  expense of the community groups and the communities

          6  that have to live with those power plants.

          7                 Lastly is on green power and, you

          8  know, living in this urban environment, it does

          9  present some particular challenges that I think will

         10  have to be addressed as we look at and if we're

         11  going to build in new green power in New York City

         12  versus buying it from outside.  But, I think solar

         13  has a tremendous amount of potential, particularly

         14  in New York City and there's also, I think, some new

         15  ideas with some of the wave technologies out there

         16  that, again, is an emerging one that, as we approach

         17  the 2030 time horizon, is one that we could meet.

         18  Thanks.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Jason, thank

         20  you.  It's wonderful to have the input of NYPIRG and

         21  I know that as we push forward on sustainability, I

         22  know that NYPIRG will be front and center in that

         23  debate and we greatly appreciate your testimony here

         24  today and your support of Intro. 264.  Thank you.

         25  Thanks very much.
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          2                 MR. BABBIE:  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Please say hi

          4  to all the good folks back at NYPIRG for us.

          5                 MR. BABBIE:  I will.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Next witness,

          7  Elaine Abrams Schechter.  I'd like to point out that

          8  we're joined by my good friend, Councilman Bill de

          9  Blasio from Brooklyn, a valued Member of this

         10  Committee.  Appreciate you being here today.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER de BLASIO:  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Oh, sure, you

         13  know what? Hang on, hang on, you've got to turn on

         14  the, the red button that you push, the light should

         15  be off.

         16                 MS. ABRAMS SCHECHTER:  Right.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  The light

         18  should be off.

         19                 MS. ABRAMS SCHECHTER:  For years I

         20  felt like a one woman battle.  Here are some of the

         21  correspondence in referring to closed doors.

         22                 Long range plans of the Mayors are

         23  lovely, but this is a bill that will do something

         24  today.  We moved back here from Westport,

         25  Connecticut six years ago.  I started this battle at
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          2  the time of the first Gulf War.  I walk my

          3  neighborhood and I admit it's, you know, a pretty

          4  tony neighborhood, asking shop keepers to close

          5  their doors.  The replies I get are, it is our money

          6  and none of your business, or the best yet, we're

          7  using oil.  We're not using oil, we're using

          8  electricity.

          9                 When I mention young people dying for

         10  oil, don't care.  So, I say, if your door is open

         11  for people to walk in, your neighbor doesn't want

         12  any customers because his door is closed?  No

         13  answer.  Incidentally, Wednesday, I went back to a

         14  lot of these stores that had their doors open in the

         15  summer, their doors are closed today.  I said, why

         16  is your door closed today?  They say, well, we don't

         17  want the cold air to come in.  I said, but in the

         18  summer, you want to welcome customers.  You don't

         19  want anybody to come in today?  No answer.

         20                 Clyde Haberman of the New York Times

         21  on June 20,  '06, wrote a column titled New York

         22  City: Next Blackout, Think of All those Stores That

         23  Had Their Doors Open.  Well, then came July 2006,

         24  blackout.  After a week of no power, Channel One

         25  featured an Astoria deli owner so happy, his air
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          2  conditioning was back. Channel One panned his store.

          3    His door was open.  Get that?

          4                 May I name names of stores in my

          5  neighborhood?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  It's your

          7  testimony, sure, you're  --

          8                 MS. ABRAMS SCHECHTER:  Fine.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  --  More than

         10  welcome.

         11                 MS. ABRAMS SCHECHTER:  On Fifth

         12  Avenue, and these stores I have gone into

         13  repeatedly.  You talk about an education, that's a

         14  joke.  They don't care.  Bendels cosmetic

         15  department. I've been in there so many times.  The

         16  Apple, big new store on Fifth Avenue, big queue, 24-

         17  7, 365 days a year that door is open. The air

         18  conditioning is freezing out to the curb.

         19                 Disney, big souvenir store, doors

         20  open.  Kenneth Cole, related to the Kennedys,

         21  environmentally correct, door open.  On Madison

         22  Avenue, Paul and Shark, a yachting store, yachties

         23  are environmentally correct?  I know where yachties,

         24  they don't care.  Porsche, Bally.  Bally threw me

         25  out of their store the other day.  They said they
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          2  didn't want me in their store because I keep telling

          3  them to close their doors.

          4                 I went to a BID meeting, a Madison

          5  Avenue BID meeting and I spoke four years ago.  They

          6  didn't care.  They told me it was their business and

          7  none of mine.

          8                 I've written to Mayor Bloomberg; the

          9  New York Times; Our Town; Con Ed, repeatedly; EPA;

         10  Steve Jobs of Apple, all to no avail.  With this

         11  law, we can be a national, a world success for

         12  energy conservation, providing the law is strongly

         13  enforced.  The fine is too low.  Mr. Jobs of Apple

         14  doesn't care. He'll think it's the cost of doing

         15  business.

         16                 Less power usage leads to less fuel

         17  usage leads to lower power costs for everyone.  When

         18  Steve Jobs has door open, the little man in Queen is

         19  paying more for his electricity.  This law must be

         20  enforced.  An education campaign is a joke.

         21                 I have a few more words.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  That's quite

         23  all right. Please continue.  I'm enjoying your

         24  testimony.

         25                 MS. ABRAMS SCHECHTER:  Thank you.  An
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          2  education campaign, think of pedestrian safety.  I

          3  walk the streets all the time.  Try to cross the

          4  street safely.  We live at Park and 65th, they block

          5  the street all the time.  There's no enforcement.

          6  The limo buses idling.  There's no enforcement.  The

          7  pooper scooper law, no enforcement.  Why will this

          8  law be enforced?

          9                 I went to Madison Avenue, I told you

         10  that one.  I told you about Stove Jibbs (phonetic).

         11  I guess I said, well, I didn't say, let's see what

         12  else.  Oh, in the winter, when the doors are closed,

         13  that means they don't want you in there.  I was told

         14  the other day, or did I say this, I may be repeating

         15  myself. Oh, this, all right, I'm being cynical when

         16  I say this.  I have called Con Ed, in June, before

         17  the blackout, repeatedly, and said why don't you

         18  advocate closed doors?  I got to the head honcho

         19  there.  Oh, it's a good idea.  Never a word.  I'm

         20  very cynical, but I say, why would Con Ed want lower

         21  usage, they'll make less money.  Think about that

         22  one.  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you Ms.

         24  Abrams.  I really do appreciate you being here

         25  today.  You know, you've given a very common sense
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          2  perspective on this.  I also want to say that

          3  Council Member Brewer thanks you for being here

          4  today and for your testimony.  She's currently

          5  participating in the Hearing right next door, but

          6  she wanted to make sure that I communicated to you

          7  how she feels.  Thank you.  We could talk after the

          8  Hearing about that.  Thank you very much, appreciate

          9  you being here.

         10                 I just want to also say, on the

         11  record, that I'm grateful to the Mayor's Office and

         12  to the Office of Long Term Planning and

         13  Sustainability for being here through the entirety

         14  of the Hearing.  I was just about to gavel the

         15  Hearing closed when I received a slip that our

         16  friend, Dr. Steve Hammer, from Columbia University

         17  wishes to make a statement.

         18                 DR. HAMMER:  Thank you very much Mr.

         19  Chairman.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Sure.

         21                 DR. HAMMER:  I just wanted to, to

         22  make two small points.  Next week, I'm going to be

         23  giving a presentation at a conference, a renewable

         24  energy conference, and I was asked to pull together

         25  some data regarding renewables deployment in four
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          2  cities and that seems to be an issue that folks were

          3  interested in here.

          4                 I can't report on all of the findings

          5  to date, but I can relay a few compelling pieces of

          6  information that will raise some interesting

          7  questions about what are the opportunities here in

          8  New York and, hopefully, I will then be able to give

          9  you part of an answer as well.

         10                 One of the cities we're looking at is

         11  Berlin, where they're, as you know, because of the

         12  German, National German Feeding Tariff, which is an

         13  incredible financial incentive for local deployment,

         14  we see widespread deployment of solar power systems

         15  around Berlin, totaling over approximately 1,200

         16  systems city- wide.  A total of six to seven

         17  megawatts of renewable power from solar energy

         18  alone.

         19                 There's also a landfill gas system,

         20  where they generate approximately 20 megawatts of

         21  power from landfill gas. There is also a  --  and

         22  that's a five megawatt system.  There's a wood waste

         23  biomass, incinerator is too strong a term, but a

         24  waste energy facility that generates 20 megawatts of

         25  electricity. The bottom line is that the City of
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          2  Berlin is using a varied approach, targeting

          3  different types of renewable resources and they're

          4  achieving rather significant success.

          5                 In the City of Shanghai, where I had

          6  the opportunity to visit last summer, deployment

          7  levels are currently quite low for active power

          8  generation technologies, small scale power

          9  generation technologies, but the city is making an

         10  incredible commitment to wind power, to the point

         11  where they are anticipating in the next five years

         12  alone, generating 300 megawatts of wind power within

         13  the City of Shanghai alone, six to ten megawatts of

         14  solar power.

         15                 In the City of London, by virtue of

         16  the Mayor's comprehensive energy strategy there,

         17  you're seeing a dramatic increase in the amount of

         18  deployment of solar power systems on new

         19  developments around the City.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  In London.

         21                 DR. HAMMER:  I'm sorry?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  In London.

         23                 DR. HAMMER:  In London.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Where the sun

         25  never shines.
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          2                 DR. HAMMER:  Where the sun never

          3  shines, that's right.  It's because there's a

          4  mandate in place similar to the mandate that we see

          5  here in Battery Park City, where large new

          6  deployment, developments, that are subject to

          7  mayoral approval, do not receive their stamp of

          8  approval unless they document a renewable power

          9  system has been deployed on site.

         10                 There's been an uptake in small wind

         11  deployment in London.  There is, there are two large

         12  wind turbines already in place in East London at an

         13  industrial manufacturing facility.  As part of the

         14  Olympics, we, unfortunately, lost the Olympics bid

         15  to London, but they have made a commitment to deploy

         16  large- scale renewable energy systems as part of

         17  that entire new development scheme.

         18                 The bottom line is that cities

         19  internationally are beginning to look more

         20  intensively at the role that local, in city

         21  deployment can play.  I can't speak to, you know,

         22  what will be in the PlaNYC report.  I have

         23  tremendous faith in Rohit and his team.  Have

         24  occasionally contributed some information to them.

         25                 One important piece of information
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          2  that we were able to contribute from Columbia was a

          3  report that we did last year, where we had a team of

          4  students examine four different renewable power

          5  technologies and what the viability was of each of

          6  these technologies in New York City.  We looked at

          7  landfill gas.  We looked at title power, akin to the

          8  system that Verdon (phonetic) Power has in place in

          9  the East River.  We looked at wind power and we

         10  looked at solar power.

         11                 The solar power number alone is, is

         12  what's astonishing.  Now, remember, this is a

         13  theoretical number and it's based simply on the

         14  number of buildings we have the available rooftop

         15  space.  But, we identified more than 6,000 megawatts

         16  of solar potential in New York City, using

         17  relatively conservative assumptions.

         18                 What's realistic given the current

         19  economics?  I think both Gil and Rohit addressed

         20  this point.  It's very difficult to move forward

         21  with certain solar technologies on other than very

         22  large- scale systems because the economics simply,

         23  it's too much more expensive than what folks are

         24  willing to pay, generally willing to pay.

         25                 The other important issue that will
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          2  really make a big difference is this whole

          3  interconnection issue.  I appreciated your raising

          4  this and I think it deserves some very careful

          5  attention because the fundamental issue is that by

          6  virtue of the Con Edison system design, we are

          7  fortunate to have, despite the Queens blackout,

          8  despite some other rather large blackouts that have

          9  occurred in recent years, we have what is widely

         10  considered to be within the industry the most

         11  reliable electric power system of any large city,

         12  nationally and potentially internationally as well.

         13                 It is the redundancy that Con Ed has

         14  built into their system design that achieves that.

         15  But, unfortunately, it's that redundancy that makes

         16  it difficult for these interconnections to occur.

         17  It is not easy to overcome that and it will not be

         18  easy to overcome that given the way they have

         19  installed circuit breakers and other types of relay

         20  switches along their network.  So, it's important

         21  that we be realistic about what can be done, even

         22  aside from if the economics improve.

         23                 In an old document, their

         24  interconnection guidelines, Con Edison explicitly

         25  stated that there would be a theoretical potential
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          2  for no more than five to ten megawatts of

          3  distributed generation of any kind, on any

          4  individual network around New York City.  Five to

          5  ten megawatts per network.  We have 54 networks in

          6  New York City.  So, that leaves us with, what's the

          7  number? 250 to 500 megawatts of distributed

          8  generation, potential City- wide.

          9                 So, if indeed that is the case, then

         10  that is the type of issue that we need to explore

         11  more fully here in the Council and more fully in

         12  collaboration with Con Edison.  That creates a very

         13  strict and severe limitation on what can be done.

         14  That will dramatically, I think, affect our ability

         15  to deliver on the long- term PlaNYC goals.  That's

         16  the kind of issue that I think we need to be talking

         17  about more in the future.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you Dr.

         19  Hammer.  With regard to that estimate of five

         20  megawatts times 54 districts or whatever  --

         21                 DR. HAMMER:  Networks.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Networks, for a

         23  total of 250 or whatever megawatts, do you think

         24  that that's something that can be overcome or are we

         25  looking at a maximum of 250 megawatts in distributed
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          2  generation?

          3                 DR. HAMMER:  Well, I think Con Ed is

          4  open to ideas.  I think they are not adverse to any

          5  individual type of technology.  They want to do

          6  what's appropriate, what can fit most easily into

          7  the system.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right, but my

          9  point is, I think I was hoping for more distributed

         10  generation than that. Or, would the deployment of

         11  250 megawatts of DG be considered a great amount,

         12  beyond much we couldn't hope to aspire?

         13                 DR. HAMMER:  Given trends in urban

         14  areas internationally, if we were to achieve 250

         15  megawatts, it would be unbelievable.  Twenty years

         16  from now, could I make that same statement?  I don't

         17  know.  I think that's largely a function of how we

         18  design buildings in the future if we have

         19  requirements or incentives  --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right.

         21                 DR. HAMMER:  --  To try and promote

         22  more deployment on site.  But, the physical

         23  limitations of the existing reliable Con Ed grid are

         24  real and they are something that, again, deserve

         25  careful consideration into the future.
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          2                 The final point I will make is that

          3  in the City of London, as part of their energy

          4  strategy, city- wide energy strategy, they're making

          5  a serious push at the development of what they

          6  characterize as microgrids.

          7                 A microgrid is essentially a new

          8  electricity grid overlayed on top of the old.

          9  Saying that, let's just bypass the old one because

         10  they're, and there are reasons for doing so,

         11  economic and environmental.  They're attempting to

         12  redesign the electricity grid in London, so that it

         13  takes, it leverages hundreds and hundreds of these

         14  microgrids that will then ultimately connect

         15  together in a more environmentally and economically

         16  efficient fashion.

         17                 Can we do that in New York?  Not

         18  under the current franchise rules, not under the

         19  current regulatory scheme and you can't do it

         20  anywhere in the United State at all.  That is where

         21  we need to be looking more into the future.  Is this

         22  a realistic way to revisit our grid limitations?  It

         23  will take some serious changes in terms of

         24  regulatory and market structures to allow that to

         25  occur, but that's the kind of discussion that I
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          2  think you'll want to be having in the near future.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Dr. Hammer, we

          4  thank you so much for not only being here today and

          5  staying for the entire Hearing, but for your

          6  contributions that you're making to Rohit and his

          7  team.  So, we greatly appreciate your involvement on

          8  all levels to making this more, a better and more

          9  sustainable City.

         10                 DR. HAMMER:  Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  We appreciate

         12  it, thank you. With no one else wishing to be heard,

         13  this Hearing's adjourned. Thank you all for being

         14  here today.

         15                 (Meeting adjourned at 10:34 a.m.)

         16                 (Following written testimony was read

         17  into the record)

         18

         19  WRITTEN TESTIMONY OF:

         20  JOHN H. BANKS

         21  CONSOLIDATED EDISON

         22

         23                 Good morning, Chairman Gennaro and

         24  committee members.  My name is John Banks and I am

         25  the Vice President of Government Relations of

                                                            101

          1  ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  Consolidated Edison.  I appreciate the opportunity

          3  to address the Committee today on the measure before

          4  the Council regarding the use of air conditioning

          5  systems.

          6                 Energy use in our service territory

          7  has increased by 20 percent over the past ten years

          8  and with the projected population increase, rise in

          9  residential construction, and the ever increasing

         10  demands on our system from the proliferation of

         11  electronic devices such as cell phones, computers,

         12  and gaming devices, we anticipate that our service

         13  area peak load will grow at an annual average rate

         14  of 1.5 percent over the next five years.  While we

         15  are spending billions of dollars on infrastructure

         16  investment and building substations to accommodate

         17  the increasing demand, we are cognizant of the need

         18  for energy conservation as a supplement to our

         19  infrastructure investment strategy.

         20                 We want our customers to make wise

         21  energy choices that will decrease their bill and at

         22  the same time, protect the environment.  Con Edison

         23  has an EnergyLine that customers can call to obtain

         24  savings information, and they can also visit our

         25  Website at www.conEd.com/customercentral/ for
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          2  additional energy tips.  We encourage our customers

          3  to visit our PowerYourWay Website

          4  (www.poweryourway.com) and learn how to make energy

          5  choices that best suit their needs, including green

          6  power options.

          7                 The measure before the committee to

          8  amend the administrative code to prohibit the

          9  opening of windows and doors while operating air

         10  conditioning systems is one that the company

         11  supports.  Allowing cooled air to escape into the

         12  outdoors is a waste of energy and needlessly raises

         13  the cost of a customer's bill as well as increasing

         14  the demand on our infrastructure.

         15                 (Hearing concluded at 12:35 p.m.)
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